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          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good morning,

          3  everyone, and welcome to this Committee, the

          4  Council's Committee on Contracts. My name is Robert

          5  Jackson, and I'm the Chair of this Committee. I

          6  would introduce my colleagues, but either they're on

          7  their way or there are other hearings. We do have

          8  other committees occurring throughout the building

          9  and across the street.

         10                 I would like to introduce the Counsel

         11  to the Committee, Robert Newman, to my right.

         12                 This morning we will be discussing

         13  Resolution number 699, which calls for an increase

         14  in the micropurchase limits from 2,500 to $5,000,

         15  and a preconsidered bill, which would amend the

         16  local law relating to the procurement of

         17  energy-efficient products.

         18                 These measures are part of the

         19  Council's ongoing procurement reform effort, the

         20  purpose of which is to streamline the procurement

         21  system, and reduce contract costs while making the

         22  City more business friendly.

         23                 As we are all aware, the problem of

         24  inefficiency and City contracting is no small

         25  matter. According to recent estimates by the
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          2  Citizens' Budget Commission, New York City spent

          3  more than $8.6 billion for construction, goods and

          4  services in Fiscal Year 2001 alone. Nearly 20

          5  percent of the City's combined capital and operating

          6  expenses.

          7                 Thus, savings in this area of

          8  government operations through streamlining could be

          9  significant and help this City in this time of

         10  budget deficits.

         11                 The Speaker and the Council, with

         12  vendors, the Administration and the Comptroller are

         13  working to streamline this system and make it more

         14  efficient. And the Council has passed a variety of

         15  legislative measures that would help move the City

         16  towards a longer term procurement-related goals.

         17                 The two measures the Committee will

         18  today consider will take the City a step further

         19  towards those goals.

         20                 Resolution Number 699. Currently

         21  small purchases are generally divided into two

         22  categories. The first category being purchases of

         23  goods valued up to $25,000, purchases of services

         24  valued at up to $50,000, and purchases of

         25  construction and construction-related services
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          2  valued at up to 100,000.

          3                 And the second one is any purchases

          4  valued up to $2,500 commonly referred to as

          5  micropurchases. Pursuant to the current Procurement

          6  Policy Board rules, agencies making small purchases

          7  may do so using a far less cumbersome process than

          8  for purchases above the small purchase limits, the

          9  2,550 and 100.

         10                 For example, for small purchases,

         11  public notice of solicitation and award,

         12  presolicitation review report, recommendation for

         13  award, supplier protest, written notice for the

         14  lowest bidder of non-responsiveness, VENDEX

         15  Questionnaire and public hearing are not required.

         16                 Agencies making micropurchases are

         17  required to take even fewer steps than for the

         18  ordinary small purchases.

         19                 Indeed, micropurchases need not even

         20  be procured competitively. Unlike for small

         21  purchases, which pursuant to the Procurement Policy

         22  Board rules generally require soliciting at least

         23  five vendors for each purchase.

         24                 Micropurchases need only be solicited

         25  from a single vendor, as long as the price is
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          2  reasonable and such purchases are spread among

          3  vendors.

          4                 Proponents of libralizing small

          5  purchase rules, such as the Administration, the

          6  Procurement Policy Board, and the Comptroller, all

          7  of whom we will hear from today regarding this

          8  matter, maintain that without periodically

          9  revisiting and raising the limitations for small

         10  purchases, the business of the City of New York will

         11  continue to become slower and that at a time of

         12  great fiscal challenges, the City needs to make its

         13  processes more efficient and faster.

         14                 The last time the micropurchase

         15  limits was changed was in 1995, when it was raised

         16  from $500 to its current level of $2,500.

         17                 Pursuant to Section 314 of the

         18  Charter, the Council and the Procurement Policy

         19  Board, have concurrent authority to establish dollar

         20  limits for small purchase procurement.

         21                 Accordingly, in order to change the

         22  small purchase limit, both the Council and the

         23  Procurement Policy Board must adopt measures

         24  affecting such change.

         25                 On December 11th, 2002, the
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          2  Procurement Policy Board, by unanimous vote, adopted

          3  and amended to its rules raising the micropurchase

          4  limit from $2,500 to $5,000.

          5                 Today the Committee on Contracts will

          6  consider a concurrent resolution, Resolution No.

          7  699, adopting that rule.

          8                 This resolution would, upon passage

          9  by the full Council, be considered the concurrent

         10  action necessary to trigger the change in

         11  micropurchase limits.

         12                 Raising the micropurchase limit would

         13  indeed put more City contracts into that category,

         14  thereby simplifying the processes for these

         15  contracts and avoiding many other complexities

         16  associated with open market purchases.

         17                 This will in turn undoubtedly lead to

         18  lower transaction costs for the City of New York.

         19                 The second item that we're going to

         20  be discussing today is the preconsidered bill.

         21                 The preconsidered measure would amend

         22  the Administrative Code to provide more flexibility

         23  for agencies required to purchase energy-efficient

         24  products, when they buy energy-using products.

         25                 Currently Section 6-127 of the
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          2  Administrative Code generally requires that when

          3  agencies purchase energy-using products, such as air

          4  conditioners or computers, that they purchase Energy

          5  Star labeled products to ensure the highest energy

          6  efficiency.

          7                 Under the preconsidered bill, the law

          8  would be amended in several ways that would enhance

          9  competition for these purchases making them more

         10  efficient, providing agencies with greater

         11  flexibility and procuring energy-efficient products,

         12  and in the long run save the City money.

         13                 First, to ensure sufficient

         14  competition for the City's business, the law

         15  currently requires that agencies bar Energy Star

         16  products if there are at least six manufacturers and

         17  six responsible vendors of such products.

         18                 Under the bill, the requirement that

         19  there be at least six responsible vendors would be

         20  eliminated.

         21                 The Administration has indicated that

         22  requiring only six manufacturers of the product will

         23  ensure a sufficient level of competition for the

         24  products and that, more importantly, it would make

         25  the process more efficient.

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 Second, the bill would require that

          3  agencies conduct lifecycle costs analysis when

          4  buying Energy Star products.

          5                 This addition to the law will ensure

          6  that the City gets the best value for its money when

          7  it purchases energy-using products by requiring the

          8  purchase of Energy Star products only when and if

          9  the City will save money by doing so.

         10                 Third, the bill would eliminate the

         11  requirement that the agencies purchase products that

         12  meet federal energy management programs,

         13  energy-efficient standards, if Energy Star products

         14  are unavailable.

         15                 This portion of the law has caused

         16  confusion and delay in the implementation because

         17  the agencies have no guidance as to the existence or

         18  manufacturers of products that meets the federal

         19  energy management program guidelines.

         20                 Unlike with the energy star program,

         21  the federal energy management program provides no

         22  list of manufacturers or products that meets its

         23  efficiency recommendations.

         24                 Without such guidance there is a

         25  greater possibility that solicitation would have to
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          2  be made twice, if after the first solicitation it is

          3  discovered, for example, that there are only two

          4  manufacturers of a particular product that meets a

          5  federal energy management products guidelines, when

          6  the law calls for at least six.

          7                 Since the most-using products that

          8  the City purchases are available with an Energy Star

          9  label, and the list keeps growing every day, and

         10  since in the event that Energy Star products are not

         11  available for a particular procurement, the law

         12  continues to require that the agency procure

         13  energy-efficient products.

         14                 Removing the federal energy

         15  management program requirements gives the energy's

         16  greater flexibility without effecting the underlying

         17  purpose of the law.

         18                 Finally, the bill would exempt from

         19  its requirements emergency purchases.

         20                 Extend the time for the submission

         21  for the Mayor's report that is required under the

         22  law so that the impact of the amended terms can be

         23  measured and included meaningfully in the report,

         24  and eliminate the need for the reporting of small

         25  purchases in the report.
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          2                 With that, I would like to introduce

          3  the other members of the Committee that are present.

          4                 To my left is Margarita Lopez, from

          5  Manhattan, and John Liu from Queens.

          6                 And our first witness will be

          7  Virginia Ross from DCAS.

          8                 Ms. Ross, please. And her testimony

          9  will be regarding the preconsidered bill that I just

         10  discussed.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS: Good

         12  morning, Chairman Jackson, and members of the

         13  Contracts Committee.

         14                 I am Virginia Ross, Deputy

         15  Commissioner of the Division of Municipal Supply

         16  Services at the Department of Citywide

         17  Administrative Services. Thank you for the

         18  opportunity to testify about this preconsidered

         19  Intro, which represents an agreement between the

         20  Administration and the City Council.

         21                 In general this legislation will

         22  require that energy-using products secured by the

         23  City of New York to be Energy Star labeled. Provided

         24  that there are at least six manufacturers that

         25  produce such products with Energy Star label.
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          2                 We share your overall objectives that

          3  the City should make responsible efforts to reduce

          4  energy consumption by purchasing energy efficient

          5  products.

          6                 As Commissioner Hirst testified last

          7  summer, with respect to the procurement of

          8  energy-efficient products, the City of New York

          9  already leads by example.

         10                 Our purchases of Energy Star labeled

         11  photocopiers, fax machines, printers, personal

         12  computers, monitors, televisions, VCRs, air

         13  conditioners and lamps amounted to 90.8 million in

         14  Fiscal Year 2002.

         15                 We are pleased that the Council

         16  worked with the Administration to design legislation

         17  which promotes the purchasing of Energy Star

         18  products while satisfying the competitive bidding

         19  requirements codified in the State law in the City

         20  Charter.

         21                 We look forward to continuing to work

         22  with the City Council and the City's energy

         23  conservation efforts.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.
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          2                 Are there any questions from my

          3  colleagues? Margarita Lopez?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That means that

          5  the opposition that you have at the last meeting

          6  that we had in regard to this issue is not any more

          7  in existence? You have come to an agreement that

          8  this bill comply with all of the requirements that

          9  you think should be in place?

         10                 I'm talking about the testimony that

         11  was provided to us last year in regard to the same

         12  bill, at the time the Administration opposed the

         13  bill with the amendments that are in place, what you

         14  are saying with your testimony is that you agree

         15  with this particular piece of legislation at this

         16  point?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS: Yes, we do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You do. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Any

         21  other questions?

         22                 Deputy Commissioner, thank you for

         23  coming in and providing the testimony.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And with that
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          2  we'll move on to the small purchase, micropurchase

          3  limits, rather. And I'd like to ask Marla Simpson

          4  from the Mayor's Office of Contracts to come

          5  forward.

          6                 Good morning.

          7                 MS. SIMPSON: So, we have Marla

          8  Simpson, who is with the Mayor's Office of Contracts

          9  and Brendan Sexton, the Chair of the Procurement

         10  Policy Board. And you can decide who wants to go

         11  first.

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: Good morning --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good morning.

         14                 MS. SIMPSON:-- Chairperson Jackson

         15  and members of the Committee.

         16                 My name is Marla Simpson. Mayor

         17  Bloomberg recently appointed me as the Director of

         18  the Mayor's Office of Contracts and the City Chief

         19  Procurement Officer. Prior to joining the Mayor's

         20  Office of Contracts last week, I was with the Office

         21  of the State Attorney General, where I served as the

         22  Section Chief in the Charities Bureau for three

         23  years.

         24                 Previous to that I served as General

         25  Counsel and Director of Internal Operations for the
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          2  Manhattan Borough President.

          3                 While I am just beginning my work at

          4  the Mayor's Office of Contracts, I begin with a set

          5  of experiences with the City contracting process

          6  that I hope will inform and inspire my efforts here.

          7                 These include, investing the

          8  financial problems of not-for-profit groups, working

          9  in and raising funds for not-for-profits; processing

         10  contracts for a small City agency, and tracking

         11  capital construction projects funded by that office.

         12                 As Director of the Mayor's Office of

         13  Contracts, I intend to continue and expand

         14  initiatives that are already underway, move the City

         15  procurement system into the 21st century, and make

         16  our practices more effective, efficient and

         17  responsive to the City's needs.

         18                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         19  appear before you today in one of those context, to

         20  support Resolution 699.

         21                 Resolution 699 raises the

         22  micropurchase limit from $2,500 to $5,000.

         23  Micropurchases, of course, are exactly what they

         24  sound like, purchases for very small dollar amounts.

         25                 Although these may be made without
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          2  competition, contracting personnel are required to

          3  ensure that the price obtained is reasonable and the

          4  purchases are distributed appropriately among

          5  responsible suppliers.

          6                 Micropurchases can be processed very

          7  quickly because they're not burdened by the

          8  procedural requisites imposed on higher dollar value

          9  procurement, such as public notice of the

         10  solicitation and award, presolicitation and review

         11  reports, recommendations for awards, supplier

         12  protests, written notices of non-responsiveness,

         13  VENDEX and public hearings.

         14                 The current micropurchase dollar

         15  limit, as the Chairman indicated, has not been reset

         16  since 1995, and therefore doesn't reflect the

         17  increase in prices over the last several years.

         18                 Last December the PPB recognized that

         19  this limit needed to be raised and passed a rule to

         20  increase it to $5,000. Under the Charter, of course

         21  the rule could not become effective until the City

         22  Council passed the concurring resolution and by

         23  taking action on Resolution 699, the Council would

         24  therefore take the final step allowing us to

         25  implement this important change.

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 We estimate annually that 5,400

          3  procurements totaling nearly $20 million, would be

          4  affected by this proposal. The passage of Resolution

          5  699 would allow the City contracting personnel to

          6  save valuable time and resources otherwise spent on

          7  these small transactions so that they could focus on

          8  higher dollar value, more complex procurement and so

          9  that those could be processed more quickly and

         10  efficiently, as well.

         11                 With this information, I urge you to

         12  pass Resolution 699. If there are any questions, I'd

         13  be happy to answer them either now or when my

         14  colleague concludes his testimony.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         17                 MR. SEXTON: Thanks, Mr. Chairman and

         18  members of the Council. Thanks for having us here

         19  this morning.

         20                 I am Brendon Sexton, I chair the

         21  Procurement Policy Board, and I appreciate very

         22  greatly the opportunity to appear on behalf of 699

         23  this morning to raise the micropurchase limits, an

         24  issue of real concern to the Board for some years.

         25                 I've been Chair of the Board now for
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          2  eight years, and during that time the Board has

          3  carefully considered many proposed rule amendments.

          4                 We first examined the micropurchase

          5  rule in 1995, at which time the level was set at

          6  $500. Agency purchasing people and our own staff

          7  believed that procurement staff was spending a huge

          8  amount of their time on very small dollar purchases,

          9  so we did a little study and examined the relevant

         10  data. We took testimony from various stakeholders,

         11  and determined that increase in fact was

         12  appropriate.

         13                 We then responded by the Board

         14  unanimously approving at that time, an amendment to

         15  Rule 308 small purchases to provide for the limit

         16  now in effect, $2,500.

         17                 I was very pleased that the Committee

         18  and the Council as a whole at that time agreed with

         19  us, and after doing their own independent study, the

         20  rule became effective with concurrent Council

         21  action.

         22                 Eight years have gone by and we have

         23  taken another look at the smallest purchases done by

         24  City agencies and we have determined that breaking

         25  the threshold is again appropriate.
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          2                 The Procurement Policy Board believes

          3  that exempting purchases under $5,000 from the

          4  City's more formal procurement requirements will

          5  have a dramatic and positive impact on the

          6  day-to-day work of agency procurement personnel.

          7                 It will allow the City's procurement

          8  people to concentrate their efforts, as Marla said,

          9  on the more significant and more complex and higher

         10  valued purchases and not expend time and effort

         11  following the more stringent informal procedures

         12  that our rules require.

         13                 The City's current considerable

         14  fiscal challenges, this changes a simple, but very

         15  major productivity improvement in our procurement

         16  practices, and if I can deviate from my written

         17  testimony for a moment, it is usually ignored, how

         18  much it costs the City in staff time and expertise

         19  to execute a procurement. Procurement transaction

         20  costs are very significant costs for the City's

         21  agencies, and anything we can do, anything within

         22  reason we can do to reduce these costs as a way to

         23  reduce City cost and improve productivity of the

         24  personnel with very little downside.

         25                 I am very pleased to see that, again,
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          2  after separately reviewing, and independently

          3  reviewing these issues, the Council's Contract

          4  Committee is in agreement that the time has come to

          5  raise the issues and that we will be able to move

          6  forward in this attempt to provide City agencies

          7  with more flexibility, with respect to small value

          8  purchases, so-called micropurchases.

          9                 As Chair of the Procurement Policy

         10  Board, and on behalf of all our members who voted

         11  for this Resolution unanimously, I want to thank you

         12  all for your efforts and I look forward to working

         13  with you in the future.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Any

         15  questions from my colleagues?

         16                 Council Member Lopez.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I have a series

         18  of questions. I want some clarification about what

         19  is going to be affected by this decision?

         20                 Are we talking about purchasing of

         21  services included on this, not just equipment and

         22  materials? Then that means that the dollars that we

         23  advocate as Council Members in discretionary

         24  dollars, will be affected by this decision?

         25                 MS. SIMPSON: To the extent that they
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          2  fall within the micropurchase rule, limit, the new

          3  limit.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Therefore, any

          5  Council Member who allocate dollars, indiscretionary

          6  dollars, will have to be $5,000 or more.

          7                 Because in the past, yes, in the

          8  past, Council Members, for the six years that I have

          9  been here, have allocated sometimes 4,000, 4,500,

         10  I'm talking about discretionary dollars. I want to

         11  know if these two things are connected or not?

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: No. No.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank

         14  you.

         15                 Then the dollars that Council Members

         16  allocate are not going to be affected by this

         17  ruling?

         18                 MS. SIMPSON: That's correct. I mean,

         19  I can think of a situation when if the Council

         20  Member allocated dollars to an agency, but I can't

         21  imagine why it would be a problem.

         22                 MR. SEXTON: It would, if anything,

         23  reduce the rules applicable to that allotment. It

         24  would make it easier to spend the money and just

         25  fewer restrictions.
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          2                 MS. SIMPSON: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That's great. I

          4  just need clarification.

          5                 MS. SIMPSON: If a Council Member

          6  allocated a very small amount of money for some

          7  specific purpose to an agency, this would speed up

          8  the process of being able to do it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And that would

         10  not limit any Council member from establishing in

         11  the discretionary dollars 2,500 to 5,000?

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: No.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It doesn't

         14  matter?

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: Not at all.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: They can decide

         17  to continue doing that as they have done it in the

         18  past?

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay. Nobody in

         21  other words is going to argue you no longer can

         22  allocate an amount of 2,500, you have to allocate

         23  5,000.

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: Not at all.

         25                 MR. SEXTON: Absolutely not.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I want to make

          3  a point in the record of this testimony, because in

          4  the past in the Council we have been told that we

          5  need to change the amount of dollars that we

          6  allocate due to the procurement process.

          7                 Then I'm making a point on the record

          8  on this issue today.

          9                 MS. SIMPSON: I would be happy to work

         10  with your Council to make sure that there's no

         11  confusion on this, to make sure that whatever the

         12  issue is that was affected by the previous small

         13  purchase rule, that there's no confusion this time.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I can clarify

         15  to you, I will hear what is this issue, but I just

         16  want it on the record for there to be no confusion.

         17                 MS. SIMPSON: No problem.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The other

         19  question that I have, reading your testimony, and by

         20  the way, welcome on board.

         21                 MS. SIMPSON: Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And I hope that

         23  we can treat you with a lot of care, love and

         24  commitment.

         25                 MS. SIMPSON: I think my chief
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          2  qualification will have to be a sense of humor at

          3  this stage. This is day four.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

          5                 Then in your testimony, page -- hold

          6  on a minute, let me make sure I have the right one.

          7  Yes, on page two. Second -- well, it's the first

          8  paragraph, I guess, "although these purchases may be

          9  made without competition, contracting personnel are

         10  required to assure that non-competitive price is

         11  reasonable."

         12                 The reason I zero in on that is

         13  because I am concerned about minority participation

         14  on these contracts, and we have never seen in this

         15  City a report from the part of the administrative

         16  side of government about how the purchasing of

         17  equipment, purchasing of materials, are handled, and

         18  we have never seen a report indicating to us

         19  minority participation in these contracts.

         20                 Then I am concerned because for the

         21  last eight years we have been unable to confirm what

         22  is the minority participation in contracts in

         23  general in the City.

         24                 This particular amount of dollars

         25  that you're talking about, although sound small,
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          2  when you put it together, can run to millions of

          3  dollars; therefore, do you have any report, any

          4  data, that indicate to us how many minority

          5  businesses participate in this purchasing process?

          6  This particular one?

          7                 MS. SIMPSON: Particularly with

          8  reference to small purchases, I don't have that data

          9  available sitting here today, but I'll be happy to

         10  research it and get back to you, whether there is

         11  data that we can share with you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then you don't

         13  know if we have it or not also?

         14                 MS. SIMPSON: Day four. At this point,

         15  I will have to get back to you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I would like to

         17  request that the Committee ask that, and I would

         18  like for the Committee to have a hearing, an

         19  oversight hearing on looking into how many minority

         20  businesses have benefit from applying for these

         21  dollars, for applying to be part of the competitive

         22  process, particularly when this competitive process

         23  doesn't have oversight capacity in the context of

         24  the way that this is regulated, is different than

         25  the way that the other process is regulated, you
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          2  know, in the bidding process, et cetera, et cetera,

          3  which allow to us a better monitoring of the

          4  process.

          5                 Then in regard to this, this is a

          6  fantastic opportunity to look into how minority

          7  businesses are given the opportunity to participate

          8  in promoting and increasing the economic capacity

          9  that small businesses from minority groups have. And

         10  it will be very interesting to look into this, at

         11  least from my point of view on looking at women

         12  businesses, and forgive me for being so biased, but

         13  that's who I am and that's the way it is, and I

         14  would like to know what is the participation of

         15  women businesses in regard to this?

         16                 Then I am curious to look into this

         17  and I would like to have a future hearing on this,

         18  if possible.

         19                 Thank you very much, and I think it's

         20  great that we're going to pass this resolution.

         21                 MS. SIMPSON: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         23  Council Member Lopez.

         24                 I'd like to introduce Council Member

         25  Joe Addabbo from Queens.
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          2                 Any other questions from anyone? Any

          3  further comments?

          4                 Thank you very much. Thanks for

          5  coming in.

          6                 The next person to testify is Arelis

          7  Echevarria from the City Comptroller's Office of

          8  William C. Thompson, Jr.

          9                 Good morning, and welcome.

         10                 MS. SIMPSON: Good morning. Good

         11  morning, and thank you. Good morning, Chairman

         12  Jackson and Honorable Committee members. My name is

         13  Arelis Echevarria. I am the Special Assistant to the

         14  City Comptroller, William C. Thompson, Jr., and his

         15  representative to the Procurement Policy Board.

         16                 On behalf of the Comptroller, I would

         17  like to thank you and the other Committee members

         18  for giving this office the opportunity to testify

         19  before your Committee on Resolution 699.

         20                 In October of last year, the City

         21  Council, with the Comptroller, established a joint

         22  Comptroller City Council Advisory Committee on

         23  Procurement Reform to identify and make

         24  recommendations in areas of the contracting process

         25  which are in need of improvement and reform.
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          2                 Working closely with the Speaker and

          3  Chairperson Jackson, this task force in January

          4  issued a report outlining our recommendations.

          5                 Those recommendations included the

          6  following:

          7                 - simplifying the VENDEX forms and

          8  instructions;

          9                 - amending the procurement

         10  regulations to require the payment of interest to

         11  vendors who perform contract work prior to

         12  registration of the contract;

         13                 - and make available all contract

         14  solicitation documents to vendors electronically.

         15                 The Comptroller's Office is in the

         16  process of implementing many of these

         17  recommendations.

         18                 The Resolution before this Committee

         19  complements the Task Force's goals of streamlining

         20  the City's contracting process. Resolution 699

         21  adopts the amendment proposed by the Procurement

         22  Policy Board to raise the micro-purchase limit from

         23  $2,500 to $5,000.

         24                 Resolution 699 also calls upon the

         25  Mayor to monitor agency micropurchases so as to
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          2  protect against abuse and ensure compliance with

          3  applicable laws and rules governing procurement.

          4                 The Comptroller supports the raising

          5  of the micropurchase limit to facilitate the

          6  purchase of relatively small procurements.

          7                 Micropurchase thresholds permit

          8  agencies to forego a lengthy and protracted bidding

          9  process when making small purchases.

         10                 In Fiscal Year 2002 the City made

         11  63,400 micropurchases. Based on Fiscal Year 2002

         12  figures, if the limit was raised to $5,000, the City

         13  would be able to make 5,900 additional

         14  micropurchases.

         15                 However, to ensure that increases to

         16  the micropurchase, increase to the purchase limits

         17  are not abused, the Comptroller also strongly

         18  supports Resolution 699's call for constant

         19  vigilance by the Mayor of City agencies adherence to

         20  procurement policies relating to such purchase

         21  limits.

         22                 To this end, the Comptroller's Office

         23  is working closely with the Mayor's Office to

         24  develop processes to prevent abuses and ensure

         25  accountability.
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          2                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          3  testify, and I'll be happy to answer any questions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

          5  you for coming in and giving you testimony on behalf

          6  of our Comptroller, and I appreciate the opportunity

          7  to work with you and the others, staff of

          8  Comptroller Thompson, to bring about the report, and

          9  I'm glad to hear that you are one of his appointees

         10  to the Procurement Policy Board.

         11                 May I ask who is the other? There's

         12  two appointees; is that correct?

         13                 MS. ECHEVARRIA: Sure. Marilyn Gelber

         14  is the other appointee, she's now with the

         15  Independence Foundation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         17                 Any questions from my colleagues?

         18                 Council Member Lopez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you have, or

         20  the Board ever have put together how much it costs

         21  to maintain the purchasing at 2,500 or increasing it

         22  to 5,000? What's the difference between the cost of

         23  both things?

         24                 MS. ECHEVARRIA: In Fiscal Year 2002,

         25  the 63,400 micropurchases that were made were worth
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          2  $47 million. I don't know how much they cost just

          3  yet, I can find that out for you, but that's how

          4  much they were worth.

          5                 The additional 5,900 would be worth

          6  $21 million. This is based on 2002 figures.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: We have never,

          8  your office have never have any study, any

          9  investigation done, data collected, that indicate

         10  what's the difference between how much --

         11                 MS. ECHEVARRIA: We may have that

         12  information back at the office, and I'll be happy to

         13  get that back to you, as soon as I return.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That would be

         15  good to provide to the Committee, and this

         16  information should be attached to the information of

         17  the actions that we've taken.

         18                 I'm under the understanding that

         19  raising it to 5,000 save money, somewhere this

         20  information need to be provided to us because if

         21  not, we are going to make a decision blindfolded

         22  here, based on the assumption that something is this

         23  way without having the information that is

         24  necessary. You don't know if you have it?

         25                 MS. ECHEVARRIA: I think we do have
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          2  that information back in the office and I'll get it

          3  back to you today or tomorrow.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

          5                 And I'm very sorry that I didn't ask

          6  this question from the Mayor's Office. The Committee

          7  should ask that question from the Mayor's Office

          8  also, and request that they give us that information

          9  to see how much money is saved when these actions

         10  are taken.

         11                 And part of my concern here was that

         12  at a given moment it was 500 and was increased and I

         13  understand why, then it's increased at 2,005 (sic),

         14  now it's going to increase to 5,000, then I'm

         15  concerned that this becomes the law of the land and

         16  by, you know, from time to time we do this, and in

         17  all honesty, I think that having a bidding process,

         18  having a control over the way the dollars of

         19  taxpayers are expended is very important, and in any

         20  way I want to be part of a Council the diminish the

         21  power that we have put in place to control the way

         22  the monies are spent.

         23                 Then this particular resolution will

         24  do that, the only concern that I have is that I want

         25  to make sure that decisions are made based on data
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          2  and clear representation that this action is

          3  required because it's going to save indeed dollars.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Point well made,

          6  Council Member.

          7                 Any other comments from my

          8  colleagues?

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 MS. ECHEVARRIA: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The next person

         12  to give testimony is Cynthia Searcy, from the

         13  Citizens Budget Commission. Please come forward.

         14                 Good morning. Welcome.

         15                 MS. SEARCY: Good morning.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good to see you

         17  again.

         18                 MS. SEARCY: Thank you.

         19                 Okay, good morning. I am Cynthia

         20  Searcy, Research Associate of Citizens Budget

         21  Commission, and as most of you know, the Commission

         22  is a private, non-profit civic organization

         23  dedicated to promoting better financial management

         24  and service delivery by the City of New York and the

         25  State of New York.
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          2                 Instead of reading my testimony,

          3  since you have it, I will spare you some time, and

          4  say that we are testifying today in favor of raising

          5  the City of New York micropurchase limit to $5,000

          6  based on the testimony you've heard before me that

          7  you would like to match the time and cost it takes

          8  to procure an item to the value of the item itself,

          9  and the studies frequently reveal that often times

         10  the cost of the bureaucracy in pushing a purchase

         11  through exceeds the cost of the actual value, the

         12  purchase.

         13                 So, we support raising a limit and

         14  applaud the Council and PPB's efforts to control

         15  procurement cost by better matching labor intensive

         16  processes, with the value of the purchase, with

         17  proper internal controls and audit procedures. The

         18  micropurchase limit of $5,000 offers significant

         19  opportunities for streamlining, purchasing and

         20  better service delivery by City agencies.

         21                 And speaking to a point that Council

         22  Member Lopez just spoke about in knowing how much it

         23  cost, I think that, I'm not sure that the City that

         24  we know has done a transaction cost study that's

         25  publicly available. I'm sure it has been done
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          2  internally, but if the figures that represented

          3  today are true, that approximately, if the limits

          4  and rates $5,000, $68 million worth of purchasing

          5  could have been done at the micropurchase level,

          6  that's significant, it's less than one percent of

          7  the total purchasing that's done by the City on an

          8  annual basis, and could significantly free up time

          9  and staff resources for higher order purchasing.

         10                 Oh, I'd like to add, sorry, that this

         11  could be even more streamlined if procurement cards

         12  were used by City agencies.

         13                 This has been a recommendation of I

         14  believe this Committee as well as the Technology

         15  Committee under the Council to encourage the

         16  Administration to use procurement cards to

         17  facilitate purchasing, so we support that as well.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you for

         19  coming in.

         20                 Any questions of my colleagues?

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 Any other witnesses, Mr. Newman?

         23                 Hearing none, I'd like to take a vote

         24  on the Resolution 699.

         25                 Oh, I'd like to introduce my
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          2  colleague Dr. Kendall Stewart, who was upstairs in

          3  the Health Committee hearing, and was asked to come

          4  down for the vote. So, welcome, Dr. Stewart.

          5                 MR. NEWMAN: So that we're clear,

          6  we're going to be voting on both matters together.

          7  We're going to couple the matters. One is the

          8  preconsidered introductory measure that would amend

          9  the Administrative Code in relation to the

         10  procurement of energy efficient products, and the

         11  second is Resolution Number 699 that would raise the

         12  micropurchase level from 2,500 to 5,000 dollars.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'd like to

         14  introduce my colleague, Council Member Yvette

         15  Clarke.

         16                 Mr. Newman, do you want to explain

         17  again where we are at in the proceeding so we can

         18  bring our colleague, her and anyone else up to date,

         19  please?

         20                 MR. NEWMAN: We've coupled two items

         21  to be voted on right now. The first is a

         22  preconsidered introductory measure that amend the

         23  Administrative Code in relation to the procurement

         24  of energy efficient products, and a second is

         25  Resolution Number 699 that would raise the
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          2  micropurchase level from 2,500 to 5,000 dollars.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And under the

          4  testimony, considering the testimony that were given

          5  by the Mayor's Office of Contracts, by DCAS and the

          6  Procurement Policy Board, the Chair, and the

          7  Comptroller's Office, Bill Thompson, his

          8  representative, who is the appointee to the

          9  Procurement Policy Board, and by Citizens' Budget

         10  Commission, Council Members, there's no one that

         11  objects to the proceedings that we're moving forward

         12  with today.

         13                 Can we call the vote, please?

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Permission to

         18  explain my vote, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So granted.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I will vote yes

         21  in both requests.  In regard to Intro. 669 (sic),

         22  correct? Reso 699, I will vote yes on it, but I will

         23  feel very uncomfortable voting yes on that

         24  resolution without this Committee having been

         25  provided with the data that justified this decision
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          2  in regard of the monies that allegedly are saved

          3  when you increase this level of funding by the

          4  personnel that you save in getting involved in the

          5  procedure to grant these contracts.

          6                 I think that is unacceptable that the

          7  Mayor's Office have not provided us with that data

          8  in advance, in order for us to have a clear

          9  understanding that indeed the action that we're

         10  taking here today is justifiable.

         11                 I will vote yes out of respect for

         12  the Chairman of this Committee, and out of respect

         13  to the members of this Committee, but I think that

         14  we should not accept as a body to be proposed to

         15  vote in the resolution like this without having the

         16  data necessary to put this forward.

         17                 So far what I have hear here from

         18  everybody who testified, is this is good but nobody

         19  can tell me where is the data that proved this.

         20  Nobody can show it to me. And therefore, I think

         21  that this body need to be more critical over what

         22  the Administration has done today here, in not

         23  providing us with that information and to the Board

         24  for not providing us with that information.

         25                 They have the responsibility, if they
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          2  allege this is the case then, at least they have to

          3  have that information on board because then how do

          4  they conclude it, that this piece of resolution is

          5  needed and is necessary.

          6                 Thank you. Yes on both.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Liu.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Stewart.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         16  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         17  abstentions, both items are adopted. Council

         18  Members, please sign the Committee reports. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         21                 And Council Member Lopez, you raised

         22  a very important point, even though I think that

         23  from a procedural point of view we know that if

         24  staff are freed up in order to deal with other

         25  matters, and don't have to spend time on the
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          2  micropurchases that under the old cap, obviously

          3  there's a cost savings there, but I agree we need to

          4  quantify that, so we know, for example, how much

          5  we're saving in the longrun, and we're going to try

          6  to have that information as soon as possible.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Mr. Chairman,

          8  incidentally, if we know the number of dollars that

          9  are saved, then that will be valuable information

         10  for us to proceed in making decisions about the

         11  budget and the future budget cuts that are coming.

         12                 Because if we're saving money in

         13  there, then that saved money, it says for the

         14  purpose of being put some other place.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Hearing no

         18  further matters, this hearing is closed.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 11:00 a.m.)
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